


(D) Consideration of new Social Work Supervisor position at
Department of Social Services (DSS) — Patrick Betancourt, DSS
Director

(E) Consideration of audit contract with Martin-Starnes &
Associates — Lori Carpenter

(F) Renewal of lease agreement with Hudson Library — County
Manager Derek Roland and Kim Carpenter

(G) Voluntary Shared Leave Program policy amendment — Derek
Roland

(H) Macon County COVID-19 Emergency Paid Sick Leave — Derek
Roland

12.Consent Agenda — Attachment #12
All items below are considered routine and will be enacted by one motion. No
separate discussion will be held except on request of a member of the Board of
Commissioners.

(A) Minutes of the December 15, 2020 special meecting and the
January 12, 2021 regular meeting

(B) Budget Amendments #150-159

(C) Tax Releases

(D) Excise tax refund stemming from Register of Deeds recording

(E) Additions to Macon County Public Health fee schedule

(F) Monthly ad valorem tax collection report — no action necessary

13.Appointments
(A) Library Board — one seat

14.Closed session if needed

15.Adjourn/Recess






Invoice / Affidavit
The Franklin Press
Post Office Box 350
Franklin, NC 28744

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA
COUNTY OF MACON

AFFIDAVIT OF PUBLICATION Personally appeared before the undersigned, Rachel
Hoskins, who having been duly sworn on cath that she is the Regicnal Publisher
of The Franklin Press, and the following legal advertisement was published in
The Franklin Press newspaper, and entered as second class mail in the Town of
Franklin in said county and state; and that she is authorized to make this
affidavit and sworn statement; that the notice or other legal advertisement, a
true copy of which is attached hereto, was published in The Franklin Press

newspaper on the following dates:

PUBLIC HEARING
MACON MIDDLE SCHOOCL
01/20/2021

And that the said newspaper in which such notice, paper, document or legal
advertisement was published, was at the time of each and every such

publication, a newspaper meeting all the requirements and qualifications of
Section I-597 of the General Statues of North Carclina and was a qualified
newspaper within the meaning of the Section I-597 of the General Statues of

North Carolina.

Qduu/ /v@bk;m/q

Signature of person making affidavit

Sworn to and subscribed before me this 21st day of January, 2021

95.54 oror 1l

-approximatgly - $ L
refinance existing County loans.

subseque
‘consid

" Governmen

.County Financge

will_hold. a” public “hearing

February -9, 2021, at 6:00 p.m;
{or as“goon thereafter as the
matter ‘May - bé " heard). ' The

. purpose’of the haaring Is to take

public - comment congerning 'a
proposed - financirig  contract,
gnde_r -which_the County would
Orfow ==, - approximate
$16,000,000 to pay cgplta_lm&stlg
of proposed: improvemsnts  to
Macon Middle Sehool, as well as
11,500,000 15

The héaring will; be' held in the
Commissiongrs - Boardroom on
the third floor’ of “the Macen
County. Courthotise, 5 West Main
Street, Franklin, North Carolina, -
bThe proposed financing would
0 sec

9 560 bg a lien on Macon
Middle School . .. (and . its
associated land), as well:as the
Counly's’ promiss “ta irepay  the
financin there ‘would bé no

recourse “against the C unity “or
its p%peﬂ%“.*-_(o_thﬁel'f "%?an -the
pledged™ “schodl ‘and " thé
assoclated land) ‘if there were a
defauilt on the financing..As part.
of this finaneing. plan, tha Macon
Gounty Board of Education wil

‘transfer- the school property to

the.County so it can be used as
collateral, " but “'the - Board - af

- Education - will rétain the fight to

usethe school.. ..+, - "
All interésted. pefsons will be
heard. Thé. County's ‘ plans are '
subjact 1o chiange based on the
comments recefved.at the public
hearing " and . the" * Board's

Sient ® and

entering” iRt Bt findneing s
subject to * obtaining -approval.
from: the North _Garalina ‘Local
;'E_qmmlssign.. s

i

entering

subject " of -
contédct Lori.
Main Streel, Frank
(telephone (828).24
lhall @maconnc.org)
01/20/2021#619295 .

{/_’j::‘[’ Ann LWhite

Notary Public iﬂ PUBLIC
M C issi B ires: /—E/V» Lo 5.; 920:? NOTARY
y Commission Expires:e A ¥ MACON COUNTY, NC
My Commission Expires 9-5-2024

* JUDY ANN WHITE

Filed with: MACON €O BD OF COMMISSIONERS
Address: 5 WEST MAIN ST FRANKLIN NC 28734
Total Amount Due: $74.91










I1E. Lori Carpenter will also be requesting approval of an audit contract
with Martin-Starnes & Associates. Along with a copy of the “contract to
audit accounts,” there is an audit engagement letter from the accounting firm
included in this packet.

I1F. Derek Roland and/or Kim Carpenter will present a proposed lease
agreement with the Hudson Library of Highlands, and a copy of the
agreement is in the packet,

11G. Mr. Roland will also present a proposed amendment to the county’s
Voluntary Shared Leave Program, which, in a nutshell, would essentially
allow any employee to donate either sick or annual leave to an employee
under certain conditions. At this time, employees can only donate annual
leave, unless the donation is going to an employee who is an immediate
family member, and then sick leave may be donated. A draft version of the
policy which has a black strikethrough of the existing language with the
proposed language following in red is included in this packet.

11H. Following discussion at Thursday’s continued session, administrative
staff is working to implement a county Emergency Paid Sick Leave (EPSL)
policy for those employees who miss work due directly to COVID-19. As
noted at the meeting, this form of paid sick leave was not reauthorized by
Congress and thus expired on December 31, 2020, and Administration/HR
did not have authority to carry it forward. Plans call for the policy to allow
paid leave time as was outlined under the Families First Coronavirus Relief
Act (FFCRA). More details will be available on Tuesday.




Resolution providing final approval of financing terms
and documents - Macon Middle School Improvements
and Loan Refinancings

WHEREAS -

The Board of Commissioners has previously determined to carry out
improvements and renovations to Macon Middle School, and to refinance some
existing County loans.

The Board has made a tentative determination to carry out the financing by
using an installment financing, as authorized under Section 160A-20 of the North
Carolina General Statutes. In an installment financing, the County’s repayment
obligation is secured by a mortgage-type interest in all or part of the property being
acquired or improved, but not by any pledge of the County’s taxing power or any
specific revenue stream. The County’s financing plan also includes the use of limited
obligation bonds, which represent interests in the installment payments to be made
by the County that can be sold to investors.

The County staff has made available to the Board the draft documents listed on
Exhibit A (the "Documents"), and a draft of an official statement designed to provide
information about the County and the financing to prospective investors in the bonds.
These items relate to the County's carrying out the financing plan.

This resolution provides the County Board’s final approval of the financing terms
and the substantially final financing documents.

BE IT THEREFORE RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of Macon
County, North Carolina, as follows:

1. Determination to Proceed with Financing -- The Board confirms its
decision to carry out the proposed installment financing as described above.

Under the financing plan, the County will receive funds from the sale of the
limited obligation bonds to carry out the projects. The County will repay the funds



over time, with interest. The County will secure its repayment obligation by granting
a mortgage-like interest in Macon Middle School. As part of this financing plan, the
County will come to own the school property to the County so it can be used as
collateral, but the County School Board will retain the right to use the school.

2. Approval of Documents; Direction to Execute Documents -- The Board
approves the forms of the Documents submitted to this meeting. The Board
authorizes the Chairman and the County Manager, or either of them, to execute and
deliver those Documents to which the County is a party. The Documents in their
respective final forms must be in substantially the forms presented, with changes as
the Chairman or the County Manager may approve. The execution and delivery of any
Document by an authorized County officer will be conclusive evidence of that officer’s
approval of any changes.

The Documents in final form, however, must provide for the principal amount
of limited obligation bonds not to exceed $30,000,000, a true interest cost of the
financing not to exceed 4.00% and a financing term not to extend beyond December
31, 2041. The amount financed under the Documents may include amounts to pay
financing expenses and other necessary and incidental costs.

3. Sale of Bonds; Approval of Official Statement - The Board appoints
Robert W, Baird & Co. Incorporated to underwrite a public offering of the proposed
limited obligation bonds.

The Board approves the draft official statement submitted to this meeting as
the form of the preliminary official statement pursuant to which the underwriters will
offer the bonds for sale. The preliminary official statement as distributed to
prospective investors must be in substantially the form presented, with such changes
as the Finance Officer may approve. The Board directs the Finance Officer, after the
sale of the bonds, to complete and otherwise prepare the preliminary official
statement as an official statement in final form.

The Board authorizes the use of the preliminary official statement and the final
official statement (collectively, the “Official Statement”) by the underwriters in
connection with the sale of the bonds.



The Board acknowledges that it is the County’s responsibility, and ultimately
the Board’s responsibility, to ensure that the Official Statement in its final form neither
contains an untrue statement of a material fact nor omits to state a material fact
required to be included therein for the purpose for which such Official Statement is to
be used or necessary to make the statements therein, in light of the circumstances
under which they were made, not misleading.

4. Officers to Complete Closing - The Board authorizes the County
Manager, the Finance Officer and all other County officers and employees to take all
proper steps to complete the financing in accordance with the terms of this resolution.

The Board authorizes the County Manager to hold executed copies of all
financing documents authorized by this resolution in escrow on the County's behalf
until the conditions for their delivery have been completed to his satisfaction, and then
to release the executed documents for delivery to the appropriate persons or
organizations.

Without limiting the generality of the previous paragraphs, the Board
specifically authorizes the County Manager (a) to approve and enter into, on behalf of
the County, any additional agreements appropriate to carry out the financing plan
contemplated by this resolution, and ({b) to approve changes to any documents
previously signed by County officers or employees, provided that the changes do not
substantially alter the intent from that expressed in the form originally signed. The
County Manager’s authorization of the release of any document for delivery will
constitute conclusive evidence of her approval of any changes.

In addition, the County Manager and the Finance Officer are authorized to take
all appropriate steps for the efficient and convenient carrying out of the County’s on-
going responsibilities with respect to the financing. This authorization includes,
without limitation, contracting with third parties for reports and calculations that may
be required under the Documents, this resolution or otherwise with respect to the
bonds.

5. Other Financing Participants - Sanford Holshouser LLP will serve as
the County’s bond counsel. Davenport & Company LLC will serve as the County’s
financial adviser. U.S. Bank National Association will serve as Trustee under the Trust
Agreement referenced in Exhibit A.



6. Redemption of Prior Obligations - The Board directs the Finance
Officer to make, on the County’s behalf, an irrevocable call for redemption of such of
the County’s existing loan and financing obligations as the Finance Officer deems
beneficial to the County. The Finance Officer shall make this call for redemption by the
execution and delivery of an appropriate certificate in connection with the original
delivery of the Documents,

7. Miscellaneous Provisions - The Board authorizes all County officers
and employees to take all further action as they may consider desirable to carry out
the purposes of this resolution. In particular, the Board directs the Clerk to this Board
to apply the County’s seal to the final form Documents, and to attest to the application
of the seal. The Board ratifies all prior actions of County officers and employees to this
end. Upon the unavailability or refusal to act of the County Manager, the Chairman or
the Finance Officer, any other of those officers may assume any responsibility or carry
out any function assigned in this resolution. In addition, the Vice Chairman or any
Deputy or Assistant Clerk may carry out or exercise any rights or responsibilities
assigned in this resolution to the Chairman or the Clerk. The Board repeals all other
Board proceedings, or parts of proceedings, in conflict with this resolution, to the
extent of the conflict. This resolution takes effect immediately.



Exhibit A -- Draft Documents

(a) A draft dated January 25, 2021, of a Trust Agreement to be dated on or
about March 1, 2021, (the "Trust Agreement”), between the County and U.S. Bank
National Association (the “Trustee”), providing for the advance of funds to the County,
for the issuance of limited obligation bonds, for the County’s obligation to repay the
amounts advanced, and for the County’s responsibilities for the use and care of the
collateral.

(b) A draft dated January 25, 2021, of a Deed of Trust and Security
Agreement to be dated on or about March 1, 2021, from the County to a deed of trust
trustee for the Trustee’s benefit, providing for a security interest in the Macon Middle
School property to secure the County’s obligations under the Trust Agreement.

(c)  Adraft of a Bond Purchase Agreement to be dated on or about March 8,
2021, providing for the underwriter’s obligation to purchase the bonds. The final form
of this Agreement will set out the final principal amount, principal payment schedule
and interest rates for the bonds, and the other terms and conditions for the
underwriter’s obligation to purchase the bonds.










































Supplementary information other than RSI will accompany Macon County’s basic financial statements. We
will subject the following supplementary information to the auditing procedures applied in our audit of the
basic financial statements and perform certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling
the supplementary information to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. We intend to provide an opinion on the
following supplementary information in relation to the financial statements as a whole:

¢ Combining and individual fund financial statements

¢ Budget and actual schedules

¢ Supplemental ad valorem tax schedules

¢ Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards

We will subject the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards to the auditing procedures
applied in our audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing
and reconciling the schedule to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. We intend to provide an opinion on whether
the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards is presented fairly in all material respects in
relation to the financial statements as a whole.

The following additional information accompanying the financial stateients will not be subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in our audit of the financial statements, and our auditor’s report will not provide
an opinion or any assurance on that other information:

* Introductory section
» Statistical tables

Data Collection Form

Prior to the completion of our engagement, we will complete the sections of the Data Collection Form that
are our responsibility. The form will summatize our audit findings, amounts and conclusions. It is
management’s responsibility to submit a reporting package including financial statements, Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal and State Awards, summary schedule of prior audit findings and corrective action
plan along with the Data Collection Form to the Federal Audit Clearinghouse. The financial reporting
package must be text searchable, unencrypted, and unlocked. Otherwise, the reporting package will not be
accepted by the Federal Audit Clearinghouse. We will assist you in the electronic submission and
certification. You may request from us copies of our report for you to include with the reporting package
submitted to pass-through entities.

The Data Collection Form is required to be submitted within the earlier of 30 days after receipt of our
auditors’ reports or nine months after the end of the audit period, unless specifically waived by a federal
cognizant or oversight agency for audits. Data Collection Forms submitted untimely are one of the factors
in assessing programs at a higher risk.

Page 2 of 9



Audit of the Financial Statements

We will conduct our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America (U.S. GAAS), the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States of America; the audit requirements of
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Adninistrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) and the State Single Audit
Implementation Act. Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the basic financial statements are free from material
misstatement. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to error,
fraudulent financial reporting, misappropriation of assets, or violations of laws, governmental regulations,
grant agreements, or contractual agreements.

An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of significant accounting estimates made by nanagement, as welt as evaluating the overall presentation of
the financial statements. Ifappropriate, our procedures will therefore include tests of documentary evidence
that support the transactions recorded in the accounts, tests of the physical existence of inventories, and the
direet confirmation of cash, investments, and certain other assets and liabilities by correspondence with
creditors and financial institutions. As part of our audit process, we will request written representations
from your attorneys, and they may bill you for responding. At the conclusion of our audit, we will also
request certain written representations from you about the financial statements and related matters.

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, together with the inherent limitations of internal control, an
unavoidable risk that some material misstatements or noncompliance (whether caused by errors, fraudulent
financial reporting, misappropriation of assets, detected abuse, or violations of laws or governmental
regulations) may not be detected exists, even though the audit is properly planned and performed in
accordance with U.S. GAAS and Government Auditing Standards of the Comptroller General of the United
States of America. Please note that the determination of abuse is subjective and Government Auditing
Standards does not require auditors to detect abuse.

In making our risk assessments, we consider internat control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. However, we will communicate to you in writing concerning any significant deficiencies or
material weaknesses in internal control relevant to the audit of the financial statements that we have
identified during the audit. Our responsibility as auditors is, of course, limited to the period covered by our
audit and does not extend to any other periods.

We will issue a written report upon completion of our audit of Macon County’s basic financial statements.
Our report will be addressed to the governing body of Macon County. We cannot provide assurance that
unmodified opinions will be expressed. Circumstances may arise in which it is necessary for us to modify
our opinions, add an emphasis-of-matter or other-matter paragraph(s), or withdraw from the engagement.

[n accordance with the requirements of Government Auditing Standards, we will also issue a written report
describing the scope of our testing over internal control over financial reporting and over compliance with
laws, regulations, and provisions of grants and contracts, including the results of that testing. However,
providing an opinion on internal control and compliance over financial reporting will not be an objective
of the audit and, therefore, no such opinion will be expressed.

Page 3 of 9



Audit of Major Program Compliance

Our audit of Macon County’s major federal and state award program(s) compliance will be conducted in
accordance with the requirements of the Single Audit Act, as amended; the Uniform Guidance, and the
State Single Audit Implementation Act, and will include tests of accounting records, a determination of
major programs in accordance with the Uniform Guidance and the State Single Audit Implementation Act
and other procedures we consider necessary to enable us to express such an opinion on major federal and
state award program compliance and to render the required reports. We cannot provide assurance that an
unmodified opinion on compliance will be expressed. Circumstances may arise in which it is necessary for
us to modify our opinion or withdraw from the engagement.

The Uniform Guidance and the State Single Audit Implementation Act require that we also plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the entity has complied with applicable
laws and regulations and the provisions of contracts and grant agreements applicable to major federal and
state award programs. Our procedures will consist of determining major federal and state programs and
performing the applicable procedures described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget OMB
Compliance Supplement for the types of compliance requirements that could have a direct and material
effect on each of the entity’s major programs. The purpose of those procedures will be to express an opinion
on the entity’s compliance with requirements applicable to each of its major programs in our report on
compliance issued pursuant to the Uniform Guidance and the State Single Audit Implementation Act.

Also, as required by the Uniform Guidance and the State Single Audit Implementation Act, we will perform
tests of controls to evaluate the effectiveness of the design and operation of controls that we consider
relevant to preventing or detecting material noncompliance with compliance requirements applicable to
each of the entity’s major federal and state award programs. However, our tests will be less in scope than
would be necessary to render an opinion on these controls and, accordingly, no opinion will be expressed
in our report.

We will issue a report on compliance that will include an opinion or disclaimer of opinion regarding the
entity’s major federal and state award programs, and a report on internal controls over compliance that will
report any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses identified; however, such report will not express
an opinion on internal control.

Management’s Responsibilities

Our audit will be conducted on the basis that management and, when appropriate, those charged with
governance, acknowledge and understand that they have responsibility:

1. For the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America;

2. For the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and
fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error;

3. Foridentifying, in its accounts, all federal and state awards received and expended during the period
and the federal and State programs under which they were received, including federal awards and
funding increments received prior to December 26, 2014 (if any), and those received in accordance
with the Uniform Guidance (generally received after December 26, 2014):;

4. For maintaining records that adequately identify the source and application of funds for federal and
state funded activities;

5. For preparing the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards (including notes and
noncash assistance received) in accordance with the Uniform Guidance and State Single Audit
Implementation Act;

6. For the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control over federal and state awards;

Page 4 of 9



10.

11.
12.

13.

14.
15,

16.

17.

18.
19.
20.

21,
. For taking reasonable measures to safeguard protected personally identifiable and other sensitive

22

23.

For establishing and maintaining effective internal control over federal and state awards that
provides reasonable assurance that the nonfederal and nonstate entity is managing federal and state
awards in compliance with federal and state statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of
the federal and state awards;

For identifying and ensuring that the entity complies with federal and state statutes, regulations,

and the terms and conditions of federal and state award programs and implementing systems

designed to achieve compliance with applicable federal and state statutes, regulations and the terms
and conditions of federal and state award programs;

For disclosing accurately, currently and completely the financial results of each federal and state

award in accordance with the requirements of the award;

For identifying and providing report copies of previous audits, attestation engagements, or other

studies that directly relate to the objectives of the audit, including whether related recommendations

have been implemented;

For taking prompt action when instances of noncompliance are identified;

For addressing the findings and recommendations of auditors, for establishing and maintaining a

process to track the status of such findings and recommendations and taking corrective action on

reported audit findings from prior pericds and preparing a summary schedule of prior audit
findings;

For following up and taking corrective action on current year audit findings and preparing a

corrective action plan for such findings;

For submitting the reporting package and data collection form to the appropriate parties;

For making the auditor aware of any significant contractor relationships where the contractor is

responsible for program compliance;

To provide us with:

a.  Access to all information of which management is aware that is relevant to the preparation and
fair presentation of the financial statements, and relevant to federal and state award programs,
such as records, documentation, and other matters:

Additional information that we may request from management for the purpose of the audit; and

c.  Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom we determine it necessary to obtain
audit evidence.

For adjusting the financial statements to correct material misstatements and confirming to us in the

management representation letter that the effects of any uncorrected nisstatements aggregated by

us during the current engagement and pertaining to the current period(s) under audit are immaterial,
both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements as a whole;

For acceptance of nonattest services, including identifying the proper party to oversee nonattest

work;

For maintaining adequate records, selecting and applying accounting principles, and safeguarding

assets;

For informing us of any known or suspected fraud affecting the entity involving management,

employees with significant role in internal control and others where fraud could have a material

effect on compliance;

For the accuracy and completeness of all information provided,

information; and
For confirming your understanding of your responsibilities as defined in this letter to us in your
management representation letter.

With regard to the supplementary information referred to above (including the Schedule of Expenditures
of Federal and State Awards), you acknowledge and understand your responsibility (a) for the preparation
of the supplementary information in accordance with the applicable criteria, (b) to provide us with the
appropriate written representations regarding supplementary information, (c) to include our report on the
supplementary information in any document that contains the supplementary information and that indicates
that we have reported on such supplementary information, and (d) to present the supplementary information

Page S of 9



with the audited basic financial statements, or if the supplementary information will not be presented with
the audited basic financial statements, to make the audited basic financial statements readily available to
the intended users of the supplementary information no later than the date of issuance by you of the
supplementary information and our report thereon.

As part of our audit process, we will request from management and, when appropriate, those charged with
governance, written confirmation concerning representations made to us in connection with the audit.

We will perform the following nonattest services:
e Draft of financial statements and footnotes

s (GASB 34 conversion entries
* Preparation of auditor portion of Data Collection Form
s Preparation of LGC’s data input worksheet

We will not assume management responsibilities on behalf of Macon County. However, we will provide
advice and recommendations to assist management of Macon County in performing its responsibilities.

With respect to the nonattest services we perform as listed above, Macon County’s management is
responsible for (a) making all management decisions and performing all management functions; (b)
assigning a competent individual to oversee the services; (¢) evaluating the adequacy of the services
performed; (d) evaluating and accepting responsibility for the results of the services performed; and (e)
establishing and maintaining internal controls, including monitoring ongoing activities.

Our responsibilities and limitations of the engagement are as follows:
¢ We will perform the services in accordance with applicable professional standards.
¢ This engagement is limited to the services previously outlined. Our firm, in its sole professional
judgment, reserves the right to refuse to do any procedure or take any action that could be construed
as making management decisions or assuming management responsibilities, including determining
account codings and approving journal entries.

Other

We understand that your employees will prepare all confirmations we request and will locate any documents
or invoices selected by us for testing.

If you intend to publish or otherwise reproduce the basic financial statements and make reference to our
firm, you agree to provide us with printers’ proofs or masters for our review and approval before printing.
You also agree to provide us with a copy of the final reproduced material for our approval before it is
distributed.

Regarding electronic dissemination of audited financial statements, including financial statements
published electronically on your Internet website, you understand that electronic sites are a means to
distribute information and, therefore, we are not required to read the information contained in these sites or
to consider the consistency of other information in the electronie site with the original document.

During the course of the engagement, a portal will be in place for information to be shared, but not
stored. Our policy is to terminate access to this portal after one year. The County is responsible for data
backup for business continuity and disaster recovery, and our workpaper documentation is not to be used
for these purposes.

Page 6 of 9



Provisions of Engagement Administration and Fees

During the course of the engagement, we may communicate with you or your personnel via fax or e-mail,
and you should be aware that communication in those mediums contains a risk of misdirected or intercepted
communications.

Marcie Spivey is the engagement partner for the audit services specified in this letter. Her responsibilities
include supervising Martin Starnes & Associates, CPAs, P.A.’s services performed as part of this
engagement and signing or authorizing another qualified firm representative to sign the audit report. To
ensure that our independence is not impaired under the AICPA Code of Professional Conduet, you agree
to inform the engagement partner before entering into any substantive einployment discussions with any of
our personnel.

Our fees for these services are as follows:

Audit Fee $ 57,600
Financial Statement Drafting 10,200
QOther Non-Attest Services -

S 67,800

Our invoices for these fees will be rendered in four installments as work progresses and are payable upon
presentation. In accordance with our firm policies, work may be suspended if your account becomes
overdue and may not be resumed until your account is paid in full. If we elect to terminate our services for
non-payment, our engagement will be deemed to have been completed upon written notification of
termination, even if we have not completed our reports. You will be obligated to compensate us for all time
expended and to reimburse us for all out-of-pocket costs through the date of termination.

We will notify you immediately of any circumstances we encounter that could significantly affect this initial
fee estimate. Whenever possible, we will attempt to use Macon County’s personnel to assist in the
preparation of schedules and analyses of accounts. This effort could substantially reduce our time
requirements and facilitate the timely conclusion of the audit. Further, we will be available during the year
to consult with you on financial management and accounting matters of a routine nature.

We want our clients to receive the maximum value for our professional services and to perceive that our
fees are reasonable and fair. In working to provide you with such value, we find there are certain
circumstances that can cause us to perform work in excess of that contemplated in our fee estimate.

Following are some of the more common reasons for potential supplemental billings:
Changing Laws and Regulations

There are many governmental and rule-making boards that regularly add or change their requirements.
Although we attempt to plan our work to anticipate the requirements that will affect our engagement, there
are times when this is not possible. We will discuss these situations with you at the earliest possible time
in order to make the necessary adjustments and amendments in our engagement.

Incorrect Accownting Methoels or Evrors in Client Records

We base our fee estimates on the expectation that client accounting records are in order so that our work
can be completed using our standard testing and accounting procedures. However, should we find numerous
errors, incomplete records, or the application of incorrect accounting methods, we will have to perform
additional work to make the corrections and reflect those changes in the financial statements.

Page 7 of 9



Failure to Prepare for the Engagement

In an effort to minimize your fees, we assign you the responsibility for the preparation of schedules and
documents needed for the engagement. We also discuss matters such as availability of your key personnel,
deadlines, and work space. If your personnel are unable, for whatever reasons, to provide these items as
previously agreed upon, it might substantially increase the work we must do to complete the engagement
within the scheduled time.

Starting and Stopping Owr Work

If we must withdraw our staff because of the condition of the client's records, or the failure to provide
agreed upon items within the established timeline for the engagement, we will not be able to perform our
work in a timely, efficient manner, as established by our engagement plan. This will result in additional
fees, as we must reschedule our personnel and incur additional start-up costs.

Our fees are based on anticipated cooperation from your personnel and the assumption that unexpected
circumstances will not be encountered during the audit. 1f significant additional time is necessary, we will
discuss it with you and arrive at a new fee estimate before we incur the additional costs. Our fees for such
services range from $75-$300 per hour.

Government Auditing Standards require that we document an assessment of the skills, knowledge, and
experience of management, should we participate in any form of preparation of the basic financial
statements and related schedules or disclosures as these actions are deemed a non-audit service.

During the course of the audit, we may observe opportunities for economy in, or improved controls over,
your operations. We will bring such inatters to the attention of the appropriate level of management, either
orally or in writing.

You agree to inform us of facts that may affect the financial statements of which you may become aware
during the period from the date of the auditor’s report to the date the financial statements are issued.

We agree to retain our audit documentation or work papers for a period of at least five years from the date
of our report,

At the conclusion of our audit engagement, we will communicate to management and those charged with
governance the following significant findings from the audit:

»  Our view about the qualitative aspects of the entity’s significant accounting practices;

¢ Significant difficulties, if any, encountered during the audit;

¢ Uncorrected misstatements, other than those we believe are trivial, if any;

¢ Disagreements with management, if any;

o Other findings or issues, if any, arising from the audit that are, in our professional judgment,
significant and relevant to those charged with governance regarding their oversight of the financial
reporting process;

*  Material, corrected misstatements that were brought to the attention of management as a result of
our audit procedures;

» Representations we requested from management;

¢ Management’s consultations with other accountants, if any; and

o Significant issues, if any, arising from the audit that were discussed, or the subject of
correspondence, with managenent,

The audit documentation for this engagement is the property of Martin Starnes & Associates, CPAs, P.A.
and constitutes confidential information. However, we may be requested to make certain audit

Page 8 of 9



documentation available to the Local Government Commission, Office of the State Auditor, federal or State
agencies and the U.S. Government Accountability Office pursuant to authority given to it by law or
regulation, or to peer reviewers. If requested, access to such audit documentation will be provided under
the supervision of Martin Starnes & Associates, CPAs, P.A.’s personnel. Furthermore, upon request, we
may provide copies of selected audit documentation to these agencies and regulators. The regulators and
agencies may intend, or decide, to distribute the copies of information contained therein to others, including
other governmental agencies.

In accordance with the requirements of Government Auditing Standards, we have attached a copy of our
latest external peer review report of our firm to the Contract to Audit Accounts for your consideration and
files.

Please sign and return a copy of this letter to indicate your acknowledgment of, and agreement with, the
arrangements for our audit of the financial statements and compliance over major federal and state award

programs, including our respective responsibilities.

We appreciate the opportunity to be your financial statement auditors and look forward to working with
you and your staff.

Respectfully,

Mertins Atanas € Qosscistis) ,CRAs, P

Martin Starnes & Associates, CPAs, P.A.
Hickory, North Carolina

RESPONSE:
This letter correctly sets forth our understanding.
Acknowledged and agreed on behalf of Macon County by:

Name:

Title:

Date:

Page 9 of 9



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA
COUNTY OF MACON

CERTIFICATE OF FINANCE OFFICER:

This instrument has been pre-audited in the manner required by the Local Government
Budget and Fiscal Control Act.

This the day of February, 2021.

Macon County Finance Officer

CERTIFICATE OF FINANCE OFFICER:

This instrument has been pre-audited in the manner required by the Local Government
Budget and Fiscal Control Act.

This the day of February, 2021.

Fontana Regional Library Finance Officer

LEASE AGREEMENT

This LEASE (the “Lease”) is made effective as of May 12, 2020, (the Commencement
Date) by and between THE HUDSON LIBRARY OF HIGHLANDS, NORTH CAROLINA,
INCORPORATED, a North Carolina nonprofit corporation (referred to as “Lessor”), MACON
COUNTY, a legal subdivision of the state of North Carolina (referred to as “Lessee™), and
FONTANA REGIONAL LIBRARY, INC., a North Carolina non-profit corporation (referred to
as “Fontana™).

RECITALS:

WHEREAS, Lessor owns certain real property, including the building and other
improvements located thereon, in the Town of Highlands, Macon County, North Carolina,
described on Exhibit A to this Lease (the Property); and

WHEREAS, Article 14, Chapter 153A of the North Carolina General Statutes authorizes
the Lessee to establish, operate, and support a public library system and to appropriate funds to




acquire, lease, equip, operate, and maintain buildings and other structures for a public library
system; and

WHEREAS, Fontana is a regional library system established under the authority of North
Carolina General Statutes Chapter 153A, Article 14, and North Carolina Administrative Code 07
NCAC 021 to promote and perpetuate library services to the residents of Macon County; and

WHEREAS, Fontana and the Lessee are parties to that certain Regional Agreement dated
December 12, 2012 by which Fontana is authorized to operate the Lessee’s county libraries and
branches; and

WHEREAS, the Regional Agreement, requires the Lessee to rent facilities, and provide
utilities, and other operating expenses to Fontana enable it to provide library services in Macon
County; and

WHEREAS, the Macon County Library Board has recommended that the Lessee lease a
portion of the Property to be occupied by Fontana to operate a public library in the Town of
Highlands; and

WHEREAS, by the terms of the Regional Agreement, Fontana will be the occupant of the
Leased Premises (as defined in this Lease) operated as “Hudson Library” to provide library
services to the public; and

WHEREAS, this Lease is intended to fulfill the Lessee’s obligations to Fontana
evidenced by the Regional Agreement; and

WHEREAS, Fontana joins in the execution of the Lease for the reasons stated, without
liability to the Lessor except, as specifically provided herein.

WITNESSETH:

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants in this Lease to be
performed by Lessee, by Fontana, and by Lessor, the Lessor hereby leases to the Lessee, and the
Lessee hereby rents the Leased Premises, to by occupied by Fontana, and to enable Fontana to
operate a public library in the Town of Highlands, N.C. upon the following terms, provisions,
and conditions.

ARTICLE 1
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE



1.1 So long as this Lease remains in force, two (2) members of Lessor’s Board of
Trustees shall be appointed by the Lessee as members of the Macon County Library Board of
Trustees to represent the interests of the Hudson Library operated by Fontana as a branch of the
Macon County public library system.

1.2 Subject only to North Carolina statutory and regulatory requirements applicable to
nonprofit corporations, Lessor’s management and governance as a North Carolina nonprofit
corporation, including all fundraising activities and expenditures, are within the exclusive and
independent control of Lessor’s Board of Trustees, without oversight or control by Lessee or
Fontana; provided, however, to the extent that such management, activities or expenditures
impact the function or operation of Fontana, then they shall require the consent of Fontana.
Lessee and Fontana acknowledge that Lessor’s Board of Trustees is not a “library board of
trustees”™ within the meaning or context of North Carolina General Statute Section 153A-265.

ARTICLE 11
LEASED PREMISES

2.1 The Leased Premises consist of the Building located on the Property as described
on Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference (the “Building™). During the
Lease Term, and all Renewal Terms (collectively the Lease Term) the Lessor shall retain the
exclusive use of and access to the storage closet in the Building located in the room presently
used for display of DVDs and audio books, to store Lessor’s business records and supplies.
During the Lease Term, Lessor shall have the exclusive use of the Community Room at the rear
of the Building from 4:00 PM to 6:30 PM on the second Tuesday of the months of February,
April, June, August, October, and December for meetings of Lessor’s Board of Trustees and at
other times reasonably convenient to Fontana. .

2.2 During the Lease Term, the Lessee and Fontana shall have a non-exclusive right
to use the parking lot, driveways, and walkways on the Property for ingress, egress, to the Leased
Premises and short-term passenger vehicles parking for visitors to the Hudson Library. Lessor
reserves the right to grant third parties permission to use the parking lot, with or without
compensation to Lessor, so long as such use does not unreasonably interfere with patrons of the
Hudson Library during hours in which the Hudson Library is open to the public. Lessor also
reserves the right, from time to time, to reconfigure the parking lot.

2.3 Lessor reserves for itself the full and exclusive possession, use, and control of all
garden areas and garden beds on the Property (the “Garden Areas”), all of which are specifically
excluded from the Leased Premises. Lessee shall not place structures, improvements, or signage
of any kind in the Garden Areas or on the adjacent sidewalks, walkways, or parking lot without
Lessor’s prior written consent, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld; provided,



however, the current signage located on the Property that pertains to the Hudson Library is
approved, and the parties agree not to make material alteration to the location or content of such
without the consent of Fontana,

ARTICLE III
TERM OF THE LEASE

31 The Lease Term shall commence on May 12, 2020 and terminate at the close of
business on January 9, 2023. The Lessee is granted an option to renew this Lease for one
successive period of ten (10) years referred to as the “Renewal Term™), provided that Lessee is
not in default of any of its obligations under this Lease at the time Lessee exercises its option to
renew this Lease, and provided the Lessee exercises this option by giving the Lessor written
notice, delivered to the Lessor at least 90 days before the close of business on January 9, 2023.
The Term and all Renewal Terms are referred to as the “Lease Term.”

3.2 At all times, the Leased Premises, and the Property shall remain the absolute
property of Lessor, free and clear from any right, title, interest, or claim of Lessee except for the
Lessee’s and Fontana’s exclusive and limited right under this Lease to use and occupy the
Leased Premises as a public library. Upon termination or expiration of this Lease, Lessee and
Fontana shall have the right to remove from the Leased Premises the Lessee’s and Fontana’s
personal property and equipment, so long as such removal does not damage the Leased Premiscs.
Any damage caused by the removal of Lessee’s or Fontana’s personal property or equipment
shall be promptly repaired at the sole cost and expense of the party causing the damage.

ARTICLE IV
OWNERSHIP STIPULATIONS

4.1 Lessee and Fontana hereby stipulate and agree that all furniture, library shelving
(including end panels and any attachments thereto), the copier presently located in the Building,
and all replacements, future additions thereto, and other personal property hereafter purchased or
acquired by Lessor are Lessor’s.

4.2 The vintage books from the original Hudson Library collection presently kept in
special cabinets in the Building’s adult reading room and all library materials, furnishings, and
fixtures purchased or acquired by Hudson Library are owned by the Lessor.

4.3 All print books, audio books, periodicals, and DVDs housed in the Building and
purchased or acquired by Fontana shall remain Fontana’s property subject to the terms of the
present and future Regional Agreements between Jackson County, Macon County, Swain
County and Fontana Regional Library, Inc.



4.4 The public computers and accessory equipment now located in the Building, and
all future additions or replacements purchased or acquired by Fontana, shall remain Fontana’s
property subject to the terms of the present and future Regional Agreements between Jackson
County, Macon County, Swain County and Fontana Regional Library, Inc.

4.5 Lessee and Fontana do not have, nor do they assert any right, title, or interest in
or to any of the Lessor’s personal property, furniture, fixtures, or equipment now or hereafter
located in the Building.

4.6 Lessor does not claim or have any right, title or interest in Lessee’s or Fontana’s
personal property now or hereafter located in the Building. In this regard, the Parties hereto
stipulate and agree that the furnishings, shelving and equipment listed on Exhibit B which is
tncorporated herein by reference are owned by Fontana and are subject to the terms of the
present and future Regional Agreements between Jackson County, Macon County, Swain
County and Fontana Regional Library, Inc.

ARTICLE V
RENT

51 Lessee shall pay to Lessor a total annual rent of One Doliar ($1.00), which shall
be payable on the first day of the Lease Term and each Renewal Term.

ARTICLE VI
TAXES AND ASSESSMENTS

6.1 Because the Lessor is a tax-exempt nonprofit corporation the Property is not
subject to ad valorem or other taxation. If the Property should, at any time during the Lease
Term, be taxed by a governmental authority, Lessor shall timely pay all property taxes.

6.2 During the Lease Term, in the event of any governmental assessment against the
Property (¢.g., paving or sidewalk assessment), Lessor shall timely pay such assessment,

ARTICLE VI
LIMITATION AND DISCLAIMER OF LIABILITY

7.1 The Lessee and Fontana release and discharge the Lessor, its officers, trustees,
and agents, from all liability, responsibility, or obligation of any kind, direct, indirect, or
contingent, to Lessee, to Fontana or to their respective trustees, officers, employees, agents,
contractors, licensees, guests, or invitees to the Property for personal injury (including death),

LN



property damage, business interruption losses, expenses, or liability for other losses whatsoever
caused by or resulting, in whole or in part, from or by reason of any one or more of the following
events or occurrences:
(a) Any failure or malfunction of, or any defects in, any electrical service
equipment located on the Property;
(b) Any failure or malfunction of, or any defects in, any HVAC equipment
located on the Property;
(c) Any failure or malfunction of, or any defects in, any plumbing located on
the Property,
(d) Any water leaks or water penetrations though the roof, walls, or
foundation of the Hudson Library Building;
(e) Any acts of trespass, nuisance, vandalism, or criminal acts of third party or
parties.
H Environmental contamination of any kind in the Building or on the
Property.
() Any defect in the parking lot or sidewalks on the Property, or the floors or
floor coverings within the Building.
(h) Property damage or personal injury to the Lessee’s or Fontana’s invitees,
guests or licenses on the Property arising from the Lessee’s or Fontana’s negligence.

7.2 Prior to the execution of this Lease, Lessee and Fontana acknowledge that their
representatives have had a full and complete opportunity to inspect and evaluate the Property,
and the Leased Premises. Lessee and Fontana accept the Leased Premises “AS IS” and “WITH
ALL FAULTS AND DEFECTS;” and without reliance on any representation or warranty by
the Lessor as to the condition of the Property or Leased Premises.

ARTICLE VIII
INSURANCE

8.1 Throughout the Lease Term, Lessee or Fontana, as indicated, shall, at its cost
and expense, provide and keep in force for the benefit of the Lessor, Lessee, and Fontana (as
indicated):

(@) Fontana shall maintain Commercial General Liability Insurance (1986

ISO Form or its equivalent) with a combined single limit, each Occurrence and General

Aggregate limit of at least Two Million Dollars (2,000,000.00), which policy shall

insure the Lessor, Lessee, and Fontana against liability arising out of and in connection

with the Lessee’s and Fontana’s use of the Leased Premises and the Property; and

(b) ISO Special Form Property Insurance on Tenant’s and Fontana’s
Personal Property for full replacement value and with coinsurance waived.

(¢)  Neither the Lessee nor Fontana shall have or make, any claim against



Lessor for any loss or damage to the Lessee’s and Fontana’s personal propeity,
regardless of the cause of the loss or damage unless such loss or damage is the result of
the Lessor’s negligence or willful misconduct; Lessee and Fontana hereby release the
Lessor from all liability for loss or damage to Lessee’s or Fontana’s personal property
unless such claim arises from the Lessor’s negligence or willful misconduct.

8.2 The Lessor shall be named as an additional insured in the Fontana’s Commercial
General Liability Insurance Policy which shall provide primary general liability insurance
coverage. Insurance maintained by the Lessor shall be excess insurance only and, if permitted
by the insurer, the Lessee’s Commercial General Liability policy shall have a waiver of
subrogation of claims against the Lessor. The original certificates of insurance and legible
copies of the original policies (or binders therefore if the policies have not been prepared) shali
be delivered to the Lessor.

8.3 During the Lease Term, the Lessor shall keep in full force and effect, at the
Lessor’s sole cost and expense, an “all risks” casualty insurance policy insuring the Building and
the Lessor’s contents against all risks at full replacement cost. The Lessee and Fontana
acknowledge that they do not have an insurable interest in the Building, the Lessor’s contents, or
any claims to the proceeds of the casualty insurance policy.

8.4  The insurance required by this Lease may, at the option of Lessor, Lessee, or
Fontana be effected by blanket policies insuring the Lessor, Lessee, or Fontana that include the
Leased Premises and Property as well as other properties owned or leased by Lessor, Lessee, or
Fontana; provided that the blanket policy coverage complies with the requirements of this Article
VIII and allocates to the Leased Premises and Property the specified coverage, without reduction
or coinsurance by reason of, or damage to, any other risk or premises named therein. If the
insurance required by this Lease shall be affected by blanket or umbrella policies, Lessor,
Lessee, or Fontana shall furnish to the other party upon request certified copies or duplicate
originals of the policies, with schedules attached showing the amount of casualty or lability
insurance or both afforded to the Leased Premises, the Property, and to the Lessor, Lessee, or
Fontana.

ARTICLE IX
UTILITIES

9.1 Lessor has no obligation to provide utilities or other services to the Leased
Premises except propane gas used for the gas logs in the fireplace located in the Building’s adult
reading room.

9.2 Except for the propane charges in Section 9.1, Lessee shall be solely responsible
for the payment of all utility services (including , electricity, water, wastewater, sewer, and trash



pickup) provided to the Property; provided, however, that Fontana shall be solely responsible for
the payment of telephone and internet service provided to the Property in connection with its
library services at Hudson Library.

9.3 Lessee and Fontana release and discharge the Lessor from all liability,
responsibility or obligation of any kind, direct or indirect, caused by interruptions, delays, or
outages with respect to utilities providing the Property.

ARTICLE X
USE OF HUDSON LIBRARY NAME

10.1  The Lessee and Fontana covenant, stipulate, and agree that [essor is the sole and
exclustve owner of the name “Hudson Library”; the Lessor has all statutory and common law
rights to the use thereof except as otherwise stated in this Lease.

10.2  During the Lease Term, Lessee and Fontana shall have a limited license to use the
name “Hudson Library” for the sole and limited purpose of identifying the public library
operated by Fontana in the Leased Premises. The Lessor shall have the exclusive right to use the
name “Hudson Library” for any and all other purposes, including, but not limited to fundraising.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, and for purposes of clarification not limitation, Fontana shall be
permitted to continue use of the name “Hudson Library” as a means of reference to its function
as a constituent library within the service area and mission of Fontana.

ARTICLE X1
TITLE, CONDITION AND USE OF PREMISES

11.1  Use-Compliance with laws and Ordinances.

(a) Lessor covenants that Lessor is seized of and has the right to lease the
Leased Premises and warrants and agrees to defend the title thereto and to reimburse and
hold Lessee and Fontana harmless from any loss by reason of any defect in Lessor's title
to the Property.

(b) Except for the Lessee’s leasehold interest created by this Lease neither the
Lessee nor Fontana have any other estate, right, title, interest, lien, or claim, legal or
equitable, in or to the Leased Premises, or the Property.

(¢} Lessee and Fontana may not use the Leased Premises for any purpose
other than a public library. Lessee and Fontana will not make any unlawful or offensive
use of the Leased Premises and will comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, and
regulations of duly constituted governmental authorities. Lessor recognizes that Fontana
has in place existing polices and procedures that are intended to protect against



“offensive” content within the library context, and this provision is not intended to
supplant or replace those policies or procedures.

(d) Lessee and Fontana shall have the right and privilege at any time during
the term of this Lease to make, at its expense, such minor changes, improvements and
alterations to the Leased Premises as the Lessee or Fontana may desire, provided,
however, that Lessee and Fontana shall not make any material or structural changes to the
Leased Premises without the prior written consent of Lessor.

(e) Lessee and Fontana shall have the peaceful and quiet use and enjoyment
of the Leased Premises solely for the purpose of operating a public library, in accordance
with this Lease and the Regional Agreement.

(f) Lessee agrees, upon the termination of the Lease Term, to deliver the
Leased Premises to the Lessor in as good order and condition as the same were on the
Commencement Date, reasonable wear and tear excepted, and free from all claims
against Lessee and Fontana.

(8) Lessee, to the extent allowed by North Carolina Law and the Constitution
of the State of North Carolina, and Fontana covenant and agree to indemnify and hold
Lessor harmless from and against any and all claims, damages, losses, liabilities,
lawsuits, costs, and expenses (including reasonable attorneys' fees) arising out of or
related to (i) any activity, work, services, or other thing done, permitted or suffered by
Lessee or Fontana in or about the Leased Premises or Property after the Commencement
Date (ii) any breach or default by Lessee or Fontana in the performance of their
obligations under this Lease, or (iii) any negligent act of Lessee or Fontana, or any
officer, agent, employee, contractor, servant, invitee or guest of Lessee or Fontana. This
indemnity shall apply to all claims for personal injury and property damage suffered by
Lessor or its officers, agents, employees, contractors, servants, invitees or guests except
for the claims or losses caused by the Lessor’s negligence or willful misconduct.

(h) Lessor covenants and agrees to indemnify and hold Lessee and Fontana
harmless from and against any and all claims, damages, losses, liabilities, lawsuits, costs
and expenses (including attorneys' fees arising out of or related to (1) any activity, work,
or other thing done, permitted or suffered by Lessor on or about the Leased Premises, or
Property after the Commencement Date (ii) any breach or default by Lessor in the
performance of any of its obligations under this Lease, or (iii) any negligent act of
Lessor, or any officer, agent, employee, contractor, servant, invitee or guest of Lessor.
This indemnity shall apply to claims for property loss or damage to Lessee, Fontana or
their officers, agents, employees, contractors, servants, invitees, or guests unless such
claim or losses is caused by the negligence or willful misconduct of Lessee or Fontana.

(1) Nothing in this provision shall be construed as a waiver of the Lessee’s
immunity under the law.



11.2 Maintenance. Replacement and Repair of Leased Premises.

Lessee shall at its expense keep and maintain the Leased Premises in good order,
condition, and repair consistent with the Building’s age, construction quality, use, size, and
appearance. The Lessee’s maintenance shall include the exterior and interior walls, roof,
structure, doors, plate glass, parking lot, and all plumbing, HVAC systems, electrical and sewage
facilities within the Leased Premises. Lessee shall at its expense keep and maintain in good
order, condition, and repair all exterior lighting located on the Property (including all exterior
lighting iocated in the garden and parking areas on the Property). Lessee shall provide pest
control and trash removal for the Building; Fontana shall provide janitorial services for the
Building from monies appropriated to it by Lessee through Lessee’s budget and in accordance
with the terms of the present and future Regional Agreements between Jackson County, Macon
County, Swain County and Fontana Regional Library, Inc. In the event Lessee fails to make
repairs or perform its maintenance obligations, Lessor may, at its option, but need not, make the
same after reasonable notice to Lessee and Fontana, and their failure or refusal to address same.
Lessee agrees to pay Lessor as additional rent, the reasonable cost thereof promptly upon
Lessor’s demand.

ARTICLE XII
DESTRUCTION

12,1  Fire. Damage and Restoration of Leased Premises.

In the event that the Building shall be completely or substantially destroyed by fire or
other casualty, not occasioned by the act or neglect of Lessee, that renders the Leased Premises
reasonably unusable by Lessee for longer than ten ( 10) business days, Lessor or Lessee shall
have the right to terminate this Lease. If the Lessor does not exercise its option to terminate,
Lessor shall, as soon as reasonably possible under the circumstances, make repairs or reconstruct
the Building. In the event of reconstruction, (a) Lessor may make reasonable changes that
improve the design of the Building to enhance its use, effictency, and functionality as a public
library;(b) Lessor shall select the architect and contractor to design and reconstruct the Building
and (c) unless this Lease is terminated by the Lessor or Lessee, all terms and conditions of this
Lease shall remain in full force and effect.

ARTICLE XIII
DEFAULT

13.1 Default by Lessee.
Any of the following events shall constitute an Event of Default:

(a) If Lessee or Fontana fail to perform and comply with any or all conditions
of this Lease Agreement, after notice and opportunity to cure as hereafter provided;

(b) If Lessee or Fontana vacate or abandon the Leased Premises; or

[0



(c) If the interest of Lessee or Fontana is transferred, levied upon, or assigned
to any other person, firm or corporation whether voluntarily or involuntarily except as
herein permitted.

13.2  Lessor’s Remedies:

In any of such events, Lessor shall have the option to do any one {or more, if not
inconsistent) of the following in addition to and not in limitation of any other remedy permitted
by law or by this Lease:

(i) Terminate this Lease, in which event Lessee and Fontana shall immediately

surrender the Leased Premises to Lessor.

(i) To make any payment required of Lessee herein or correct any condition
required to be corrected by Lessee, and Lessor shall have the right to enter the Leased Premises
for the purpose of correcting any such condition and to remain on the Leased Premises unil the
complete correction of such condition. However, no expenditure by Lessor on behalf of Lessee
shall be deemed to waive or release Lessee's breach hereof and Lessor shall retain all rights to
proceed against Lessee as set forth herein.

(i) All other rights and remedies provided by law for a lessor when a lessee
defaults, including all such money damages as Lessor shall be entitled to by law. To exercise
any remedy under this Article. Lessor may enter the Leased Premises and expel Lessee and
Fontana therefrom.

The exercise by Lessor of any one or more of the remedies provided in this Lease shall
not prevent the subsequent exercise by Lessor of any one or more of the other remedies herein
provided. All remedies provided for in this Lease are cumulative and may, at the election of
Lessor, be exercised alternatively, successively, or in any other manner and are in addition to all
other rights provided by law.

13.3 Holding Over.

In the event Lessee or Fontana remains in possession after expiration of the Lease Term
without the execution of a new lease, Lessee or Fontana shall not acquire any right, title or
interest in or to the Leased Premises; and, in such event, Lessee and Fontana shall occupy the
Leased Premises as a tenant from month to month and shall otherwise be subject to all of the
conditions, provisions and obligations of this Lease insofar as the same shall be applicable.

13.4  Effect of Waiver or Performance.

No waiver of any breach by Lessee or Fontana of any of the Lessee’s obligations,
agreements or covenants hereunder shall be a waiver of any subsequent breach or of any other
obligation, agreement or covenant, nor shall any forbearance by Lessor to seek a remedy for any
breach by Lessee or Fontana be a waiver of the Lessor’s rights and remedies with respect to that
or any subsequent breach.



ARTICLE XIV
MISCELLANEOUS

14.1  Inspections.

The Lessor has the right (but not the obligation) to enter the Building at all reasonable
hours to inspect the Building, to make repairs, additions or alterations as Lessor may deem
necessary for the safety, comfort or preservation of the Building. During the last ninety (90) day
period of the Lease Term, Lessor may exhibit the Leased Premises to prospective tenants,
mortgagees or purchasers, and remove placards, signs, fixtures, alterations or additions which
do not conform to this Lease or local ordinances. No such entry shall constitute actual or
constructive eviction.

14.2  Notices

Any notices provided for herein shall be given by Registered or Certified Mail, addressed
to Lessor, as follows:

The Hudson Library of Highlands, North Carolina, Incorporated
Attn: President of the Board of Trustees

554 Main Street

PO Box 430

Highlands, North Carolina 28741

And to Lessee, as follows:
County of Macon
Attn: County Manager
5 West Main Street
Franklin, NC 28734

As to Fontana: Regional Director, Fontana Regional Library, Inc.
33 Fryemont Street.
Bryson City, North Carolina 28713

The persons and places to which notices are to be mailed may be changed from time to
time by Lessor, Lessee, or Fontana upon written notice of the other parties.

14.3  Descriptive Headings.
The descriptive headings of this Lease are inserted for reference only and do not
constitute a part of this Lease.

14.4  Severability Clause.

If any clause or provision of this Lease is illegal, invalid or unenforceable under preseit
or future laws effective during the Lease Term, then, and in that event, it is the intention of the
Parties (i) that the remainder of this Lease shall not be affected thereby, and (ii) that in lieu of

12



each clause or provision of this Lease that is illegal, invalid or unenforceable, there shall be
added as a part of this Lease a clause or provision as similar in terms that is legal, valid and
enforceable.

14,5 Notice and Right to Cure.

Each party shall give to all other parties written notice of any alleged default, specifying
the nature of the default and allowing the allegedly defaulting party 30 days after receipt of such
notice to cure the default or a reasonable period of time in addition thereto if circumstances are
such that the default cannot reasonably be cured within said 30 day period. Lessee does not
have a right of offset or right to terminate this Lease.

14.6  Lessor’s Liability.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, in the event of any breach
hereof by Lessor or failure of Lessor to perform any of its obligations hereunder, Lessor shall
have no personal liability for such matters but Lessee shall look solely to Lessor's interest in the
Leased Premises for satisfaction. Lessor shall, upon any sale of its interest in the Leased
Premises, be relieved of further performance hereunder. Lessee agrees to attorn to any
successor to the Lessor.

14.7  Successors in Interest.
This Lease shall be binding on and shall inure to the benefit of the Parties and their
respective heirs, personal representatives, successors and assi gns.

14.8 Entire Agreement,

This Lease contains the entire agreement of the Parties and no representations,
inducements, promises or agreements, verbal or otherwise, between the parties not stated in this
Lease shall have any force or effect. No failure of Lessor to exercise any power given Lessor
hereunder, or to insist upon strict compliance by Lessece or any obligation hereunder, and no
custom or practice of the Parties at variance with the terms hereof shall constitute a waiver of
the Parties’ right to demand exact compliance with the terms of this Lease.

14.9  Controlling law.
This Lease is entered into in North Carolina and shall be enforced and construed in

accordance with the North Carolina statutes, ordinances and applicable common law.

14.10 In the event of any conflict between the terms of this Lease and the Regional
Agreement, the Lease shall govern the rights, duties, and obligations of the Parties.

14.11 Time is of the essence of this Lease with respect to all time pertods and deadlines
in this Lease.

I3



SECTION XV
ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS

15.1 Lessor represents and warrants that to the best of its knowledge as of the
Commencement Date, that the Leased Premises are in compliance with all Environmental
Laws. Lessor shall not (either with or without negligence) cause or knowingly permit the
escape, disposal or release of any biologically active or other hazardous substances, or
materials within the Leased Premises.

15.2  Lessee covenants and agrees that it will keep and maintain the Leased Premises
at all times in compliance with Environmental Laws. Lessee shall not (either with or without
negligence) cause or permit the escape, disposal or release of any biologically active or other
hazardous substances, or materials on the Premises.

15.3 Each Party shall hold the other free, harmless, and indemnified from any
penalty, fine, claim, demand, liability, cost, or charge whatsoever which the other party shall
incur, or which the other party would otherwise incur, by reason of such party’s failure to
comply with their obligations in this Section XV, including but not limited to:

(1) the cost of full remediation of any contamination to bring the Leased Premises into
the same condition as prior to the Commencement Date and into full compliance with all
Environmental Laws; (ii) the reasonable cost of all appropriate tests and examinations of the
Leased Premises to confirm that the Leased Premises and any other contaminated areas at the
Property have been remediated and brought into compliance with all Environmental Laws;
and (iii) the reasonable fees and expenses of the other party’s attorneys, engineers, and
consultants incurred by such party in enforcing and confirming compliance with the Parties’
obligations, as applicable.

15.5 Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Lease, Lessee’s
environmental responsibilities shall not apply to any condition or matter constituting a violation
ol any Environmental Laws to the extent such violation (1) arose or is attributable to actions or
conditions in existence prior to the Commencement Date, or (i1) is caused by, or results from
the acts or neglects of Lessor or Lessor’s agents, employees, officers, partners, contractors,
guests, invitees or any other party not within Lessee’s control.

15.6  All representations, warranties, covenants and indemnities in this Article XV
shall remain binding on the Parties after the expiration or earlier termination of this Lease.

SECTION XVI
MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

16.1  Nothing in this Lease shall be deemed or construed as creating the relationship
of principal and agent or of partnership or joint venture among the Parties. The relationship
among the Parties shall be that of Lessor and Lessee.

16.2  All employees, contractors, consultants, professionals and providers relating to
the Lessee’s and Fontana’s use of the Leased Premises shall be deemed to be employees or
contractors of the Lessee or Fontana and not of Lessor.

14



16.3 Lessee and Fontana acknowledge that this Lease and their rights hereunder are
subordinate to the lien of any deed of trust executed by Lessor charged against the Property, or
any portion or portions thereof, and Lessee and Fontana shall execute at any time and from
time-to-time such documents as may be reasonably required to confirm this subordination;
provided, however, that Lessee and Fontana shall not be required to confirm the subordination
of its leasehold interest in the Leased Premises unless the mortgagee named in a deed of trust
shall first enter into a subordination, non-disturbance and attornment agreement (a “Non-
Disturbance Agreement™), which shall inciude the following: so long as Lessee or Fontana
shall not be in default or any provision of this Lease after receipt of written notice and
expiration of the applicable cure period:; (i) Lessee and Fontana shall be not joined as a
defendant in any proceeding which may be instituted to foreclose or enforce the deed of trust;
(11) Lessee’s and Fontana’s possession and use of the Leased Premises in accordance with this
Lease shall not be affected or disturbed by reason of the subordination of this Lease to, or the
Lessor’s default, under the deed of trust; and (iii) the mortgagee will subordinate and subject its
rights, if any, to any portion of the insurance proceeds otherwise payable to the Lessor when
and to the extent necessary for Lessor to comply with its obligations of repair and restoration
hereunder.

16.4 This Lease Agreement, or a Memorandum thereof, at the election of the Lessee
may be recorded in the Office of the Register of Deeds for Macon County.

16.5 E-VERIFY. Lessor, Fontana and Lessee shall comply with the requirements of
Article 2 of Chapter 64 of the General Statutes. Further, if Lessor, Fontana or Lessee utilizes a
subcontractor, then Lessor, Fontana or Lessee, as appropriate shall require the subcontractor to
comply with the requirements of Article 2 of Chapter 64 of the General Statutes.

[REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Lessor, Lessee and Fontana have executed this Lease in
duplicate originals, all by authority respectively duly given, as of the date and year first above

written.

LESSOR:

THE HUDSON LIBRARY OF HIGHI.ANDS,
NORTH CAROLINA, INCORPORATED, a
North Carolina Nonprofit Corporation,

By:

President

Attest:
Secretary

(Corporate Seal)

LESSEE:
MACON COUNTY, a legal subdivision of the
State of North Carolina, North Carolina

By: (SEAL)

Chairman
Macon County Board of Commissioners

Attest:
Clerk, Macon County, N.C. Board of
Commissioners

(County Seal)

FONTANA REGIONAL LIBRARY, INC.

By:

as its Chairman, Board of Trustees

Attest:
Secretary

{Corporate Seal)

16




STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA
MACON COUNTY

I, , a Notary Public, of County, North Carolina,
do hereby certify that and \
personally appeared before me this day and acknowledged that they are the President of Hudson
Library of Highlands North Carolina, Incorporated and its Secretary and that by authority duly
given and as the act of The Hudson Library of Highlands North Carolina, the foregoing
instrument was signed by such President of The Hudson Library of Highlands North Carolina,
sealed with its corporate seal and attested by such Secretary of The Hudson Library of
Highlands North Carolina.

WITNESS my hand and official seal, this the day of , 2021,

Official Signature of Notary

Notary Public’s printed name
My Commission expires:

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA

MACON COUNTY
L, , a Notary Public, of County, North
Carolina, do hereby certify that and , personally appeared before me

this day and acknowledged that they are the Chairman and Clerk of the Macon County Board of
Commissioners and that by authority duly granted and as the act of Macon County, North
Carolina, the foregoing instrument was signed by the Chairman of the Macon County Board of
Commissioners, sealed with its corporate seal and attested by the Clerk to the Macon County
Board of Commissioners.

WITNESS my hand and official seal, this the day of , 2021,

Ofticial Signature of Notary

Notary Public’s printed name
My Commission expires:

17



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA

MACON COUNTY
I, , a Notary Public, of County, North
Carolina, do hereby certify that and , personally appeared before me

this day and acknowledged that he (she) are the authorized representatives of the Fontana
Regional Library Inc., and that by authority duly given to them the foregoing instrument was
signed by its Chairman, Board of Trustees, sealed with its corporate seal and attested by its
secretary.

WITNESS my hand and official seal, this the day of , 2021

Official Signature of Notary

Notary Public’s printed name
My Commission expires:

18



EXHIBIT "A"
Legal Description to Follow

BEGINNING at a locust post set in the North margin of Main Street in the Town of Highlands,
North Carolina, said point being located South 79 degrees 24 minutes East 201.23 feet from the
Northeast corner of Main and Fifth Streets; runs thence with the North line of Main Street, South
79 degrees 24 minutes East 125 feet to an iron pipe; thence with a divisional line North 24
degrees 34 minutes East 393.91 feet to an iron pipe; thence North 74 degrees 23 minutes West
122,06 feet to an iron pipe; thence South 24 degrees 34 minutes West 405 feet to the
BEGINNING, containing 1.1 acres more or less and being described herein according to a
survey and drawing by Charlie W. McDowell, dated December 20, 1982.

Also more fully described in Deed Book G-15, Page 163 of the Macon County, North Carolina
Register of Deeds.



EXHIBIT "B"
Furnishings, Shelving and Equipment owned by Fontana Regional Library

20






program. The non-relative employee donor will not be allowed to transfer annual leave when the result
of such transfer will exhaust that employee’s annual leave to less than 40 hours. The Human Resource
Director and the County Manager will approve or disapprove participation by employees from their
respective departments.

Participation in the shared leave program, either as donor or recipient, is subject to limitations with
respect to eligibility, minimum and maximum transfers, type of leave transferred, verification of
medical condition, and disposition of unused leave, among others. These requirements, as well as
procedures and forms for the shared leave program, are available upon request at the Macon County
Human Resources Office.

BOC Approved — 11.13.12







































Mike Decker

From: Todd Raby <traby@maconnc.org>

Sent: Monday, February 01, 2021 4:27 PM

To: Mike Decker

Cc: Derek Reland; Jana Smith

Subject: Feb 9 Agenda Item from Register of Deeds
Attachments: REFUND $9000.pdf

Mike,

Subject Line: Agenda ltem for February 9 Commissioners Meeting

Good Afternoan

Mike the refund for $9000 needs to be on the agenda for the upcoming meeting which you should have received a letter, NC G.S. 105.228.37 explains how refunds
and corrections need to be handled. [twas explained to Mr. Rohe what would have to take place for the refund to be given. | have attached the copy of the statute,
the original recording and the correstive deed. If you need any more information please let me know.

Todd Raby
Macon County Register of Deeds



§ 105-228.37. Refund of overpayment of tax,

(a) Refund Request. — A taxpayer who pays more tax than is due under this Article may
request a refund of the overpayment by filing a written request for a refund with the board of
county commissioners of the county where the tax was paid. The request must be filed within
six months after the date the tax was paid and must explain why the taxpayer believes a refund
is due.

(b)  Hearing by County. — A board of county commissioners must conduct a hearing on
a request for refund. Within 60 days after a timely request for a refund has been filed and at
least 10 days before the date set for the hearing, the board must notify the taxpayer in writing of
the time and place at which the hearing will be conducted, The date set for the hearing must be
within 90 days after the timely request for a hearing was filed or at a later date mutually agreed
upon by the taxpayer and the board, The board must make a decision on the requested refund
within 90 days after conducting a hearing under this subsection.

(¢)  Process if Refund Granted. — If the board of commissioners decides that a refund is
due, it must refund the overpayment, together with any applicable interest, to the taxpayer and
inform the Department of the refund. The Department may assess the taxpayer for the amount
of the refund in accordance with G.S. 105-241.9 if the Department disagrees with the board's
decision,

(d)  Process if Refund Denied. — If the board of commissioners finds that no refund is
due, the written decision of the board must inform the taxpayer that the taxpayer may request a
departmental review of the denial of the refund in accordance with the procedures set out in
G.S. 105-241.11.

()  Recording Correct Deed. — Before a tax is refunded, the taxpayer must record a new
instrument reflecting the correct amount of tax due. If no tax is due because an instrument was
recorded in the wrong county, then the taxpayer must record a document stating that no tax was
owed because the instrument being corrected was recorded in the wrong county. The taxpayer
must include in the document the names of the grantors and grantees and the deed book and
page number of the instrument being corrected.

When a taxpayer records a corrected instrument, the taxpayer must inform the register of
deeds that the instrument being recorded is a correcting instrument. The taxpayer must give the
register of deeds a copy of the decision granting the refund that shows the correct amount of tax
due. The correcting instrument must include the deed book and page number of the instrument
being corrected. The register of deeds must notify the county finance officer and the Secretary
when the correcting instrument has been recorded.

() Interest. — An overpayment of tax bears interest at the rate established in G.S.
105-241.21 from the date that interest begins to accrue. Interest begins to accrue on an
overpayment 30 days after the request for a refund is filed by the taxpayer with the board of
county comissioners. (2000-170, s. 2; 2007-491, s. 24; 2011-330, s. 30(a).}

G.S. 105-228.37 Page 1



BK: CRP N-40

H - FEE $28.

e - 2081 2021000218 ;:ATE O:Noz
01111/2021 MACON COUNTY, NC
01:01:12PM TODD RABY REAL ESTATE
ASSISTANT REGISTER OF DEEDS EXTX $6000.00
BY; JANA SMITH

When Recorded Return To: WGLands LLC

P.O. Box 1084 Highland Park, IL 60035

This Instrurnent Prepared By: Danie! Rohe MR

5125 Wilshire Crossing, Cumming, GA 30040 MACON COUNTY

01-11-2021 12:42:
Property Contral No: 7517278082 & 7517360743 TAX COLLECT%)RginIQI(IESE
S %Ct ﬁ .00
Lm T Tﬁ X qgo h O SPECIAL WARRANTY DEED

T
Made the day of D(.LEM"J{[ 2020, by Sanju Varghese EPSP 401k, whose post office address s 3510 Aston
Street Annandale, VA 22003, hereinafier called the prantor, to WGLands LLC, An Hlinois Limited Lia bility Company,
whose post office address is P.O. Box 1084 Highland Park, IL 60035 hereinafter called the grantee.

(Wherever used herein the terms “grantor” and "gramtces” include all the parties to this instrument and the heirs, legal
representatives and assigns of individuals, and the successors and assigns of cotporations)

WITNESSETH, That the said Grantor, for and in consideration of the sum of Ten Poliars (310.00), in hand paid by the
said Grantee, the receipt whereof is hereby acknowledged, does hereby grants, bargains, and sells unto the Grantee, and
Grentee's successors, heirs, and ussigns forever, all the right, title, interest, ¢laim and demand which the said Grantor has in and
to the following described lot, piece or parcel of land, situate, lying and being in the County of Macon, State of North Carolina,
to wit;

See Legal Description Attached as Exhibit A

TOGETHER with all the tenements, hereditaments and apputtenances thereto belonging or in anywise appertaining,
TQ HAVE AND TO HOLD, the same in fee simple forever.

AND the grantor hereby covenants with said grantee that the grantor is lawfully seized of said land in fee simple; that
the grantor has good right and lawful awthority to sell and convey said land; that the grantor hereby fully warrants the title to said
land and will defend the seme against the [awful claims of all persons claiming by, through or under grantor.

IN WITNESS, WHEREOQF, the said first party has signed and sealed these presents the day and year first above written
Signed, sealed and delivered in the presence of:

Granter Signature(s):

DATED: /&/g /ZDZO
" %’”

Sanju Varghe@'{r;ge% Sanju Varghese EPSP 401k
3510 Aston Street Annandale. VA 22003
Submitted electronical 1]\1/ by "ROTAC LLC"

in compliance with North carolina statutes governing recordab]
. e doc t
and the terms of the submitter agreement with the Mgcon county Regigrtng gf Deeds.




)

Witness Slgna
T (e V4
Witnéss™ S(gnature

STATEOF M aryla le

COUNTY OF N\OM"'OJ\ DINNEIL

I HEREBY CERTIFY that on this day, before me, an officer duly authorized to administer oaths and take
acknowledgments, personally appeared Sanju Varghese, known to me to be the person(s) described in and who
executed the foregoing instrument, who acknowledged before me that he/she executed the same, that [ relied upon the
Following form(s) of identification of the above-named person(s): A U DA02(55 2 ep- Q{gTﬁVugmla Driver’s
License and that an oath was/was not taken,

WITNESS my hand and official seal in the State and County last aforesaid this %‘_ 14 day of TGy,
2020.

e T

aafj 1 MVALL\L&J\,C\"’\@&)TP

otary Public

25 PUBLIC IS8
X 5 A F Signature of person taking acknowledgment
% cg‘f!f.‘t e
U, ' Q,O o "
'ﬁ?ﬁ:ﬂu‘! W Tm:%fng;nk)

My commission expires _\JAne, '\1!'292‘4"




EXHIBIT A

Parcel One - Lot 360 Section 11

Being the same lands, easemeuts, privileges and appurtenances as described in and convoyed by that deed dated March 15,2017,
from Tecry L. Notiage, unremarried widow of Antbony F. Nottage to Robert Dodd, 2 single man, as recorded in Deed Book
W-37, Pages 50-51, in the Macon County Land Registry, North Carolina, being more particularly described as follows;

Being the same lands, easements, privileges and appurtenances as described in and conveyed by that deed from Watauga Vista,
Inc. to Anthony F. Nottage and wife, Terry L. Nottege, dated 30 January 1987 and recorded in Deed Book F-17, Page 446,
Macon County Land Registry, and being more particularly described thergin as follows:

BEING LOT NUMBER 360 SECTION L1, of Watauga Vista, Inc., mapped and surveyed, dated July 1969, by Bib Swan,
Registered Land Surveyor, as recorded in the Office of the Register of Deeds, Macon County, North Carolina, in Plat Cabinet 1,
Slide 65, Page 4. Reference is hereby made to said plat and record for 2 more complete and accurate description of the property
hereby conveyed.

THIS CONVEYANCE IS MADE SUBJECT TO the covenants and conditions of Watauga Vista, Inc., as recorded in the Office
of the Register of Deeds, Macon County, North Carolina in Book E-7, Page 124 and amendments to restrictions recorded in the
Office of the Register of Deeds Macon County, North Carelina as follows: Book H-7, Page 273; Book P-7, Page 41; Book T-7,
Page 366; Book V-7, Page 300; Book Z-7, Page 145; Book C-8, Page 195; Book F-8, Page 284; Book 0-8, Page 254; Book R-8,
Page 6; Book Y-8, Page 249; Book D-9, Page 173 and Book C-12, Page 25.

Parce! Two - Lot 361 Section 11

Being the same lands, easernents, privileges and appurlenances as described in and conveyed by that Commissioners Deed dated
December 20, 2016, from Jeffrey Goss, Commissioner, pursuant to that Order of Confirmation (Tract D) entered Juty 26, 2016
in Macon County File No.: 09-CVS-631 entitled The County of Macon, Plaintiff v. Watauga Vista, Inc., Defendant to Robert
Dodd, single, as recorded in Deed Book 8-37, Pages 308-309, in the Macon County Land Registry, North Carolina, being more
particularly described as follows;

BEING LOT NUMBER 361 SECTION 11, of Watauga Vista, located in Millshoal Township and bearing parcel identification
number 7517-36-0743 according 1o the Macon County Mapping Office, as shown on thal certain plat prepared by Bob Swan,
RLS, dated July, 1969, a copy of said plat being recorded in Plat Cabinet 1, Slide 65, Page 4, of the Macon County Registry, to
which reference is hereby specifically made.

Also being “Tract One™ described in a deed dated September 29, 1989 from John F. Henning, Trustee to Watauga Vista, Inc., as
recorded in Book S-19, Page 705 of the Macon County Registry, together with all appurlenances and subject to any and all
easements, rights of way and restrictive covenants described thereir.




s oee s |{IRUIAE

RS 15178 2020002982
05-12-2020 MACON GOUNTY, NG
02:36:49 F'M TODD RABY

€Y. TODD RABY REOISTER OF DEERS
REGISTER

Revenue Stamps: $12.00

Mail afler recording to: ~ David C Spivey, P.A., $87 West Main Street, Franklin, NC 28734

This instrument prepared by: David C Spivey, Attorney
587 West Main Street, Franklin, NC 28734

Delirquent taxes, if any to be paid by the closing attomney to the county tax collector upon disbursement af closing
praceeds.

Brief Deseription for Index Lots 360 & 361 Watauga Vista, Franklin, NC 28734

!
Tax Parce! Identification Number: 7517279082 & 7517360743 ggP NO

The property conveyed herein was not the primary residence of the Grantor.

NORTH CAROLINA GENERAL WARRANTY DEED

TH!S DEED made this | | *tay of May, 2020, by and between
Enter in appropriate block for each party: name, nddress, and, If appropriate, character of entity, e.q. carporation or partaership

GRANTOR GRANTEE
Robert Dodd, a single man Sanju Varghese EPSP 401K
218 Buck Creek Road 3510 Aston Street
Highlands, NC 28741 Annandalé, VA 22003

The designation Grantor and Grantee as used herein shall include said parties, their heirs, successors, and
assigns, and shall include singular, plural, inasculine, feminine or neuter as required by context,

WITNESSETH, that the Grantor, for a valuable consideration paid by the Grantee, the receipt of which is
hereby acknowledged, has and by these presenis does grant, bargain, selt and convey unto the Grantee in fes simple, all
that cerain lot of land situated in, Millshoz) Township, Macon County, North Carolina and more particularly described
as follows:

SEE ATTACHED "EXHIBIT A"

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the aforesaid [ot or parcel of land and ali privileges and appurtenances thereto
belonging to the Grantee in fee simple.

And the Grantor covenants with the Graniee, that Graater is seized of the premises in fee simple, bas the right
to convey the same in fee simple, that title is marketable and free and clear ef all encumbrances, and that Grantor will
warrant and defend the title against the Jawful claims of all persons whomsoever except for the exceptions hereirafter

stated.

Title to the property hereinabove described is subject to the following exceptions:



[N WITNESS WHEREQF, the Grantor has haresmio set his hand and seal, or If corparate, has cnused this instrument 1o be sigred i jts

corporate name by its duly authorized officers and its seal to be herennto affixed by authority of its Board of Directors, the day and year first above
written.

W %p (SEAL)

‘Rabert Dodd

SEAL-STAMP STATE OF NORTH CAROQLINA COUNTY OF MACON

1, Mahala Justice. u Notary Public of said State and County, do hereby certify that Robert Dodd,

persanally appeared before me this day and acknowledged the due execution of the foregoing
instrument for the purposes hercin expressed.

Witness my hand and Notaria) Seal this [ |+ 2y of May, 2020.

MacoenCcunty

Notary Public

MAHALA JUSTICE
Netary Public
North Carpoling

My Commission Expires March 17, 2024
Notary's Form of ldentification:
Personally known: =
Photo Identification

Other




Exhibit “A™
Parcel One - Lot 360 Scction 11

Being the same lands, easements, privileges and appurtenances as described in and conveyed by that
deed dated March 15, 2017, from Terry L. Nottage, unremarried widow of Anthony F. Nottage to
Robert Dodd, a single man, as recorded in Deed Book W-37, Pages 50-51, in the Macon County
Land Registry, North Carolina, being more particularly described as follows: '

Being the same lands, easements, privileges and appurtenances as described in and conveyed by that
deed from Watauga Vista, Inc. to Anthony F. Nottage and wife, Terry L. Nottage, dated 30 January
1987 and recorded in Deed Book F-17, Page 446, Macon County Land Registry, and being more
particulatly described therein as follows: .

BEING LOT NUMBER 360 SECTION 11, of Watauga Vista, Inc., mapped and surveyed, dated July
1969, by Bib Swan, Registered Land Surveyor, as recorded in the Office of the Register of Deeds,
Macon County, North Carolina, in Plat Cabinet 1, Slide 65, Page 4. Reference is hereby made to
said plat and record for a more complete and aceurate description of the property hereby conveyed.

THiS CONVEYANCE IS MADE SUBJECT TO the covenanis and conditions of Watauga Vista,
Inc., as recorded in the Office of the Register of Deeds, Macon County, North Carolina in Book E-7,
Page 124 and amendments to restrictions recorded in the Office of the Register of Deeds Macon
County, North Carolina as follows: Book H-7, Page 273; Book P-7, Page 41; Book T-7, Page 366;
Book V-7, Page 300, Book Z-7, Page 145; Book C-8, Page 195; Book F-8, Page 284; Book O-8,
Page 254; Book R-8, Page 6; Book Y-8, Page 249; Book D-9, Page 173 and Book C-12, Page 25.

Parcel Two - Lot 361 Section 11

Being the same lands, easements, privileges and appurtenances as deseribed in and conveyed by that
Commissioners Deed dated December 20, 2016, from Jeffrey Goss, Commissioner, pursuant to that
Order of Confirmation (Tract D) entered July 26, 2016 in Macon County File No.: (9-CVS-631
entitled The County of Macon, Plaintiff v. Watavga Vista, Inc., Defendant to Roberi Dodd, single,
asrecorded in Deed Book §-37, Pages 308-309, in the Macon County Land Registry, North Carolina,
being more particutarly described as follows:

BEING LOT NUMBER 361 SECTION 1], of Watauga Vista, located in Millshoal Township and
bearing parcel identification number 7517-36-0743 according to the Macon County Mapping Office,
as shown on that certain plat prepared by Bob Swan, RLS, dated July, 1969, a copy of said plat being
recorded in Plat Cabinet 1, Slide 65, Page 4, of the Macon County Registry, to which reference is

hereby specifically made.



Also being “Tract One” described in a deed dated September 29, 1989 from John F. Henning,
Trustee to Watauga Vista, Inc., as recorded in Book 8-19, Page 705 of the Macon County Registry,
together with all appurtenances and subject to any and all easements, rights of way and restrictive
covenants described therein.






